
 

Objection correspondence to the revised parking proposals for 
Vermont/Talbot Close 

 
Highways and Parking 
Network Management 
Southampton City Council 
45 Castle Way,  
Southampton SO14 2PD 
 
Direct Dial: (023) 8083 2337      Fax: 023 8083 3981 
Email: graham.muir@southampton.gov.uk     Our Ref: HP/NM/GM/CC18/ 
Please ask for Graham Muir    
 
The Occupier         9th November 2009 
Vermont Close, Talbot Close & The Firs (Talbot Close) 
 

Dear Sir / Madam,  

Parking Restrictions Vermont Close, Talbot Close and The Firs (Talbot Close) 

Further to my letter of 18th June, I am writing to update residents as to the status of the proposed parking 
restrictions in Vermont Close, Talbot Close and The Firs (Talbot Close). At the end of October we received 
technical approval from the Department for Transport for the signing for the scheme. There is however an 
issue arising from the planned work at the Great Oaks School which we are seeking to address. We 
understand that this construction work will temporarily reduce the parking available on the school site for 
around 40 weeks. As a consequence, during school times visitors to the Red Lodge Community Pool (RLCP) 
will no longer be able to use parking in the Great Oaks School. 
As it is Council policy to support community services, we have been considering how we can assist RLCP 
during the construction period, whilst still balancing the interests of residents. There would appear to be no 
benefit to residents or RLCP in delaying the introduction of the scheme, as this could lead to a higher level of 
conflicting demand for on-street parking between residents, visitors, commuters and contractors.  
Having exhausted the scope for parking in the short term off the highway, we are now proposing to amend the 
draft Traffic Regulation Order to allow permits to be issued to visitors to Red Lodge Community Pool. In order 
however to limit the impact on residents, these permits would be restricted for use within 75m of the Red 
Lodge Community Pool. This would restrict their visitors to any available parking in the proposed parking bay 
in Vermont Close and the area opposite the garages further north along Vermont Close. There would be no 
change to resident’s entitlement to park in these areas. Whilst this is not an ideal solution for residents or for 
visitors to the Red Lodge Community, we view this as the only practical option, if the pool is to remain in 
operation.  

Whilst we would hope that you will find this amendment to the draft Traffic Regulation Order acceptable but if, 
for any reason you do not, and you wish to object to the proposal to allow permits to be issued to RLCP, you 
have right to do so. Your objection would then be placed before the Council’s Cabinet for consideration and a 
decision (unless the proposal is withdrawn). Should you wish to make an objection in this way, please 
write to me stating your reasons for doing so and making sure your letter reaches me no later than 12th 
December 2009. Please note that in the event you wish to make an objection and request that it be 
considered by the Council’s Cabinet body, any future correspondence may be included within a Cabinet report 
accessible by the public or be subject to disclosure under Freedom of Information legislation. 
 



Yours faithfully 
 

Graham Muir 

 
Graham Muir,  
Traffic Engineer, Traffic Management 
 
 

If you would like this letter sent to you in another format or language, please contact the number at the top of 

this letter.  



 

 
 



 
 
 



 
Highways and Parking 
Network Management 
Southampton City Council 
45 Castle Way 
Southampton SO14 2PD 
 
Direct Dial: (023) 8083 2337   Fax: 023 8083 3981 
Email: graham.muir@southampton.gov.uk  Our Ref: HP/NM/GM/CC18/ 
Please ask for Graham Muir    
 
Colin Norris Chairperson      3rd September 2009 
Peter Davis, Penny Cooper 
Red Lodge Community Pool Ltd 
Vermont Close 
Bassett 
Southampton 
SO16 7LT 
 
Dear Colin Norris, Penny Cooper and Peter Davis 
 
Re: Bassett, Highfield and Hampton Park Residents Parking Scheme Amdt 3 09 
 
Thank you for your letter of 13th August objecting to the proposed permit parking scheme in Vermont 
Close. 

The scheme is primarily intended to deter long stay commuter parking and to restrict parking in the 
vicinity of the junctions. From our observations we were not aware of a significant level of visitors to 
the Red Lodge Community Pool parking in Vermont Close during the period (8am to 6pm, Monday to 
Friday) the permit scheme would operate. As we also understand there are plans to extend the 
parking and pick-up/drop facilities at the Great Oaks School, the Traffic Management team will delay 
its decision on your objection until 5th October to enable further time for consideration of the matter. 

In the interim any further indication you may be able to provide on how many vehicles might be 
affected and at what time of day, would be appreciated. There may also be benefit in your 
organisation clarifying with Great Oaks School whether the expansion of their parking facilities could 
assist your visitors. 

If you require any further information please contact me, otherwise I have enclosed a map of the 
proposed restrictions as this can be more informative than the description on the public notice 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 
 

Graham Muir 

 
Graham Muir,  
Traffic Engineer, Traffic Management 





 

 



 



Highways and Parking 
Network Management 
Southampton City Council 
45 Castle Way 
Southampton SO14 2PD 
 
Direct Dial: (023) 8083 2337     Fax: 023 8083 3981 
Email: graham.muir@southampton.gov.uk    Our Ref: HP/NM/GM/CC18/ 
Please ask for Graham Muir    
 
Colin Norris Chairperson       9th November 2009 
Peter Davis, Penny Cooper 
Red Lodge Community Pool Ltd 
Vermont Close 
Bassett 
Southampton 
SO16 7LT 
 
Dear Colin Norris, Penny Cooper and Peter Davis 
 
Re: Bassett, Highfield and Hampton Park Residents Parking Scheme Amdt 3 09 
 
Thank you for your email of 3rd October confirming your objection to the proposed permit parking 
scheme in Vermont Close. I also recognise from our discussions and copies of your correspondence 
with Richard Hards that you have been working to address a range of issues arising from the 
construction work at Great Oaks School including arranging alternative parking where possible. I am 
sorry if this has not yet been as productive as may have been expected. 

As we now have received technical authorisation from the Department for Transport for the signing 
for the proposed parking permit scheme in Vermont Close, we now need to establish whether we 
have an acceptable resolution to parking provision for visitors to Red Lodge Community Pool on the 
highway. Otherwise the matter will need to be taken to the Cabinet of the Council for a decision. 

Taking into account your objection that the proposed 2 hour limited waiting parking bay, would be 
significantly short of the capacity you may require and that your regular visitors would need have 
permits issued in advance we are now intending to amend the draft Traffic Regulation Order as 
follows: 

• To allow parking permits to be issued for specified periods for named individuals or parties 
(e.g. schools) for the purpose of visiting Red Lodge Community Pool only. 

• For these permits to be limited to within 75m of the pool. This would effectively restrict visitors 
to any available parking in the proposed parking bay in Vermont Close and the area opposite 
the garages further north along Vermont Close, as we have discussed. The pool visitors could 
then be supplied with a map to highlight the permitted areas of parking.  

It is intended that this arrangement would only apply for the period of construction work.  

Whilst I appreciate there may be outstanding issues off the highway and this amendment to the draft 
Traffic Regulation Order but may not meet all you needs, I hope that you will find it acceptable, if for 
any reason you do not, and you still wish to object, you have right to do so. Your objection would then 
be placed before the Council’s Cabinet for consideration and a decision (unless the proposal is 
withdrawn). Should you wish to make an objection in this way, please write to me stating your 
reasons for doing so and making sure your letter reaches me no later than 12th December 
2009.  



Please note that in the event you still wish to make an objection and request that it be considered by 
the Council’s Cabinet body, any future correspondence may be included within a Cabinet report 
accessible by the public or be subject to disclosure under Freedom of Information legislation. 

If you require any further information please contact me. 

Yours sincerely, 
 

Graham Muir 

 
 
Graham Muir,  
Traffic Engineer, Traffic Management 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


